-----Original Message-----

From: 
DE&T Mail  

Sent:
Tuesday, 16 May 2006

To:
DL All School Principals; DL All Schools; DL All Corporate; DL All School Council Presidents; DL School Services Officer A-H; DL School Services Officer I-P; DL School Services Officer Q-Z; DL All Business Managers; DL TSP All Technicians; DL School Technicians; DL All HRMS Users; SDL OHS Reps; DL Learning Technology Co-ordinators

Subject:
B018-2006 DE&T MAIL Bulletin for week ending 19 May 2006
Department of Education and Training
Victoria

For all principals and regional staff
S141-2006 Privacy and Transfer of Student Information
This Circular builds on Circular S002/2006 – Students transferring from or to Schools Interstate and replaces Circular 008/2005 - Privacy and Transition of Student Information.
The Guide to privacy and transfer of student information between Victorian government schools and schools interstate has been updated to include the new process for the National Transfer Note http://www.mceetya.edu.au/mceetya/default.asp?id=12095
The information should be read by Principals, Transition Coordinators, Student Welfare staff and Business Managers of primary and secondary schools.

The Department is committed to protecting the privacy of personal and health information.  When transferring student information between schools, privacy laws, teacher’s duty of care, and existing Departmental policy need to be considered.  In consultation with regions, The Guide to privacy and transfer of student information between Victorian government schools and schools interstate has been developed to support staff when transferring student information.

If you have any queries or require assistance for transfers between schools in Victoria, please contact your Regional Office and for interstate transfers, please ring the Statistical Information and Analysis Unit on (03) 9637 3225.
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PRIVACY – Protecting Information



Guide to privacy and transfer of student information between Victorian government schools and schools interstate

This information complements existing guidelines on Volunteer Transfer from a School (see http://www.eduweb.vic.gov.au/referenceguide/enviro/4_7.htm), School census guidelines, CASES21 Transfer note, and Regional Student Placement Year 7 information.

Introduction

This guide advises government schools on how the Victorian privacy laws apply to the transfer of student information between Victorian government schools, and from Victorian government schools to non -government schools and to schools interstate.  This guide supports previous Departmental Privacy Bulletins: Collection, Use and Disclosure, Data Quality and Data Security.  It also supports previous advice provided in circular S002/2006 – Students transferring from or to schools interstate.

Background

When information about students is shared between government schools, the Information Privacy Principles governing the ‘Collection’, ‘Use and Disclosure’, ‘Data Quality’ and ‘Data Security’ of personal and health information apply.  Information collected and held within government schools is owned by the Department under the Public Records Act 1973.  Transfer of the information from one Victorian government school to another government school is permitted provided that the information is:

· directly related to providing an education for the student, 


· required to provide a safe environment, and

· what a parent
 would reasonably expect to be disclosed by the former government school to the new school.

1.
Victorian Government School Enrolment 

In Victoria a school that is enrolling a student must seek a Volunteer Transfer from a School from the child’s previous school at the time of enrolment.  When a parent seeks to enrol their child at a Victorian government school, a school enrolment privacy notice should be provided.  A school enrolment privacy notice template can be accessed from the Department’s Privacy Intranet site.  

After a primary school student has enrolled in a secondary school, the secondary school can request provision of CASES21 enrolment information electronically as long as the data is up-to-date and the electronic transfer is secure.  Prior to the transfer of information, parents should be advised that the relevant data is being transferred and be given an opportunity to update their enrolment information.  This approach is accepted when records are being transferred to government schools in Victoria only.  Information on CASES21 guidelines can be found in CASES21 Admin Quick Guides (See outlook:\\Public Folders\All Public Folders\EduLibrary\Schools\CASES21\CASES21 Admin\Quick Guides).

2.
Do the original records transfer with the student?


The Public Records Act requires the dispatching school to keep the created record and only transfer copies of student records.  Student records need to be screened in order to verify information being provided is accurate and up-to-date.  

Only records with a valid education, student support or other duty of care purpose should be copied and provided to the receiving school.  To prevent misinterpretation and misuse, information that is unsubstantiated, misleading, and irrelevant or hearsay should not be passed on.  

Original records should be kept in accordance with General Disposal Schedule for School Records (PROS 01/01) http://www.prov.vic.gov.au/recmgmt/authority/deet.htm.


3.
Can a new Victorian government school request information about a student’s educational ability from the previous Victorian government school?

After a transferring student has enrolled and attended the new school, the school can request information about the student’s educational ability from the previous school. 

4.
Can Victorian Government Confidential Student Files be disclosed between Victorian government schools?


A new school may request additional information, such as information about the social and emotional needs of the student.  This information may have been generated as part of a Confidential Student File (CSF) and should be transferred in accordance with the Public Records Act and the Department’s policy.  Refer to Department Guidelines Confidential Student Files.  

In brief, relevant information attached to a CSF can only be transferred between school Guidance Officers after the student has enrolled in the new school.  Parents and students need to be informed that relevant, current information from the CSF will be disclosed to the receiving school and the receiving school must inform the parent when the information from the CSF has been requested (See Transition Sample Notice for Parents).

5.
Can personal information about a student be disclosed between Victorian government schools when a school believes it is necessary to fulfil their duty of care?

Additional information, necessary for principals and teachers to protect the welfare of students, staff and the school community in accordance with their duty of care, may be provided by the student’s previous school.  The privacy laws are consistent with a principal’s or a teacher’s duty of care and recognise and permit the collection, use or disclosure of information that supports this function.  When a school needs to transfer information to fulfil their duty of care, the parent and student need to be informed (See Victorian Government Schools Reference Guide 6.28.9).

In general, privacy laws do not compel a school to disclose information if they are not prepared to do so.  However some key exceptions apply including when a person consents, or when the disclosure is necessary to lessen or prevent a serious or imminent threat to life, health or safety, or the disclosure is required by law or for law enforcement purposes (See Privacy Bulletins Collection, and Use and Disclosure).

6.
Can student records be disclosed under the Victorian Occupational Health and Safety Act, 2004?

Under the Victorian Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004, teachers are required to disclose information about a student if there is a risk or perceived risk to the safety of the school community.  Schools have a duty to ensure the information they disclose is accurate and current.  Parents and secondary school students need to be informed that the student’s personal information is being sent to the receiving school.  

Information about a student cannot be transferred until the student has enrolled in and attended the receiving school.  Records transferred under the Victorian Occupational Health and Safety Act must be clearly labelled they are being disclosed for this purpose and contain a Record of Disclosure cover sheet.  Information which is not relevant needs to be removed.  In accordance with the Public Records Act, dispatching schools that created the records must only transfer copied records and must retain the original records, more information is provided in Section Two of this guide.  For more information on the Victorian Occupational Health and Safety Act, 2004 procedures see https://www.eduweb.vic.gov.au/edulibrary/Schools/Circulars/2005/circular_328-2005_protocols_for_transfer_of_student_info-eml.doc.

7.
Can records be passed from Victorian government schools to non-government schools? 


Apart from the transfer note, the exchange of information between government schools and non- government schools requires the specific consent of the parent and, at secondary school level, the affected student. (Exceptions apply; see Use and Disclosure).  It is the responsibility of the receiving school to obtain the consent from the parent and/or student for the disclosure of this information.  Alternatively, the parent can collect copies of the information requested directly from the previous school for their provision to the receiving school.  If the principal/teaching staff at the previous school are concerned that the transferring student is at risk of causing harm or there is a perceived risk as defined by the Victorian Occupational Health and Safety Act, 2004 records can be disclosed in accordance with Section Six of this guide. 

8.
Can Victorian government schools transfer student information interstate?

A school can transfer a student’s information outside Victoria with the consent of the parent and, if the student is at secondary level, with the consent of the student. (Exceptions apply).  The Interstate Student Data Transfer Note and Protocol is a joint initiative between the Commonwealth Government, State and Territory Education Authorities and the Independent and Catholic Sectors.  In accordance with the Victorian Public Records Act original records must stay in the originating school and only a copy of relevant information can be transferred.  Information provided in sections two to six of this guide still applies.

Further information (including downloadable forms, protocols and fact sheets) is available from the website of the Ministerial Council on Education, Employment, Training and Youth Affairs (MCEETYA) – www.mceetya.edu.au/transfersnote/index.htm. 

(To be sent on school letterhead)

Transferring Confidential Student Files between Victorian government schools

SAMPLE ADVICE FOR PARENTS

Letter to parent/guardian advising that relevant information from their child’s Confidential Student File will be transferred between schools


Dear Parent/Guardian


It is that time of the year when our Year 6 students and families are making decisions about which secondary school to attend.


Once you have made your decision and enrolled your child into a Victorian government secondary school, the secondary school may request administrative information from insert school name as well as any relevant additional information about your child’s educational abilities.  


A request may also be made to transfer information from your child’s Confidential Student File. It is the secondary school’s responsibility to inform you that the file has been requested. If requested, this information is transferred by insert school name to the Guidance Officer of the receiving school.

Insert school name will be working towards making the transition between schools as smooth as possible for you and your child. If you have any queries on the transfer of information relating to your child and how the school manages this process, please do not hesitate to contact our Transition Coordinator on insert phone number.


Yours sincerely


Principal


(insert school name)


___/___/2006


(To be sent on school letterhead)


Transferring student information from Victorian government schools under the Victorian Occupational Health and Safety Act, 2004

SAMPLE ADVICE FOR PARENTS


Letter to parent/guardian advising that relevant information from their child’s file will be transferred between schools


Dear Parent/Guardian

I am writing to inform you that the school has an obligation under the Victorian Occupational Health and Safety Act, 2004 to transfer relevant information about your child to his/her new school.  The information being placed on the transfer note will include:

If you have any questions regarding this, please do not hesitate to contact me on (insert phone number).

Yours sincerely


Principal

(insert school name) 

___/___/2006


(To be sent on school letterhead)


Record of Disclosure Authorisation

As Principal of insert school name I have authorised the attached information about insert student name being disclosed under the Victorian Occupational Health and Safety Act, 2004 to insert new school name.  To my knowledge only accurate and relevant information about the student is being transferred. 

I have informed the parent/guardian of this disclosure.  If you have any queries about the attached information please contact me at insert school name on insert school phone number

Signature of Principal from school releasing the records


_________________________


Date:  ___  /  ___  / _____


Principal


(insert school name)


-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Signature of Principal from school receiving the records


_________________________


Date:  ___  /  ___  / _____


Principal


(insert school name)


-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Do not detach Record of Disclosure Authorisation from the student’s records. 


� Parent is defined as the parent, guardian, main caregiver or person(s) responsible for the day-to-day care of the child.
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